
EXECUTIVE
AGENDA

Venue: Bainbridge Room, The Copeland Centre, 
                                        Catherine Street,Whitehaven. CA28 7SJ 
Date: Monday, 22nd July, 2019
Time: 10.00 am
Contact Officer: Clive Willoughby            Tel: 01946 598328

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Statements of Executive Decisions of the Meeting held on 24 June 2019 1 - 12

3. Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items: 

4. Written Questions from Members of the Public 

5. Reports from Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

6. Forward Plan 13 - 18

7. 2018/19 Council Performance Plan - Quarter 4 19 - 44

8. Health and Safety Half Yearly Monitoring Report 45 - 50

9. Date and Time of Next Meeting: 

The next meeting of the Executive will be held on Monday 19 August 2019 
at 10:00am in the Bainbridge Room, The Copeland Centre, Catherine Street,
Whitehaven, CA28 7SJ.

NOTES

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers except during the 
consideration of exempt or confidential items. If you have a query on the meeting 
arrangements or if you require a copy of this document in a different format (large print, 
braille, audio tape, electronic formats such as CD or in a different language) please contact 
the relevant officer as shown below. 

Call-In
Most of the decisions taken by the Executive can be ‘called in’, in accordance with Council’s 
Constitution, within 5 working days of the decision notice being published. It is expected 
that the decision notice will be published on Thursday 25 July 2019. Subject to this 
publication, the deadline for calling in any decision is 5.00pm on Thursday 1 August 2019. 

Public Document Pack



Emergency procedures
In the event of a fire alarm being sounded please follow the instructions of the Chair; leave 
the building via the nearest emergency exit and make your way to the Fire Assembly Point 
located in the Copeland Centre car park.

Reporting 
Recording, filming and reporting of this meeting is allowed but must be done in accordance 
with the protocol which is clearly displayed in the room and all mobile devices must be 
switched to silent.

Contacts: Direct Dial: 01946 598328
E-mail: clive.willoughby@copeland.gov.uk
Website: www.copeland.gov.uk



Notice of Decisions Taken Under Delegated Powers 
by the Executive on Monday, 24 June 2019

NOTES: The deadline for calling in any of these decisions is 5.00 pm on 4 July 2019.

A copy of the Executive agenda setting out all the reports has previously been circulated to all 
Members of the Council.

Officers are asked to read this Decision Notice, as it is the responsibility of the Officer named in 
the Action Column to ensure that the appropriate action is taken.

If you require further information on any issue, please contact the Officer named in the right hand 
column.  For general information or to obtain a copy of any documentation please contact 
Democratic Services.

Present: Mike Starkie (Mayor); Councillors David Moore (Deputy Mayor), Michael McVeigh, 
Gwynneth Everett  and Steven Morgan.

Apologies for Absence: Sarah Pemberton, Head of Governance and Commercial (Monitoring 
Officer). 

Officers Present: Pat Graham, Chief Executive; Julie Betteridge, Executive Director Operations; 
Steven Brown, Chief Financial Officer; Mike Graham, Political Advisor; Clinton Boyce, Solicitor; 
Andrew Clarke, Communications and Engagement Manager; Clive Willoughby, Democratic 
Services Officer; James Young, Scrutiny Officer; Michaela Peet, Assistant Solicitor and Barbara 
Vernon, Property & Estates Manager.

Also Present: 

Statements of Decisions – The Statements of Decisions made on the 16th April 2019 were signed 
by the Mayor as a correct record.

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Item 
No.

Decision Action by

 
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS IN AGENDA ITEMS:

To receive any declarations of interests in agenda items.

Decision

No declarations of Interest were made by those present.

Reason for Decision

N/A

Alternative options considered and rejected (if any)

N/A

N/A

Item 
No.

Decision Action by

 
4 WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

Decision

Not applicable as no questions had been received from Members of the 
public.

Reason for Decision

N/A

Alternative options considered and rejected (if any)

N/A

N/A

Page 2



Item 
No.

Decision Action by

 
5 REPORTS FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

To receive any recommendations from the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. 

Decision

Not applicable as no recommendations had been received from the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

Reason for Decision

N/A

Alternative options considered and rejected (if any)

N/A

N/A

Item 
No.

Decision Action by

 
6. FORWARD PLAN

To consider the Executive’s Forward Plan.

Decision

RESOLVED – That the Forward Plan of Key decisions and Work Plan be 
noted.

Reason for Decision

The Local Authority (Executive Arrangements (Access to information 
(England) Regulations 2012 requires a forward plan to be prepared in 
respect of key decisions.  The work plan is good practice.

Alternative options considered and rejected (if any)

N/A

N/A

Page 3



Item 
No.

Decision Action by

 
7. 2018/19 FINANCE REPORT – QUARTER 4

This Provisional Outturn report sets out the year-end results against the 
Council’s Revenue and Capital Budgets for the 2018/19 financial year. 

2018/19 has been financially challenging, the impact of the devastating 
cyber-attack in August 2017 and subsequent recovery has been significant. 
Not only has the Council faced significant and unavoidable costs, staff time 
has been diverted to recovery action. On 3rd December 2018 Government 
issued a Capitalisation Directive in relation to the costs associated with the 
Cyber-attack; this allowed the Council to fund revenue costs up to £788k in 
2017/18 and £991k in 2018/19 (a total of £1,779k) from Capital Receipts.

Decision

RESOLVED – That 
a) the 2018/19 Provisional Revenue Outturn of a £148k net overspend 

be noted,
b) the summary of the revenue outturn variances be noted,
c) the transfer to earmarked reserves of budget carry forward requests 

of £261k be approved,
d) the provisional capital outturn for 2018/19 be noted, and
e) programming changes and amendments to the 2019/20 Capital 

Programme following the provisional outturn for 2018/19 be 
recommended to Council.

Reason for Decision

These proposals ensure the proper administration of the Council’s financial 
affairs to enable the continued delivery of services to Copeland residents. 

Alternative options considered and rejected (if any)

No other options were considered.

Steven Brown
Chief Finance 
Officer

Page 4



Item 
No.

Decision Action by

 
8. 2018/19 PROVISIONAL ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REVIEW 

To consider the 2018/19 Provisional Annual Treasury Management Review.

Decision

RESOLVED – that the 2018/19 Annual Treasury Management Review report 
be approved.

Reason for Decision

The Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government 
Act 2003 to produce an annual treasury management review of activities 
(Borrowing and Investing) and to report performance .  This report meets 
the requirements of both the ‘CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management’ (the Code) and the ‘CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance 
in Local Authorities’ (the Prudential Code).

Alternative options considered and rejected (if any)

No other options were considered.

Steven Brown
Chief Finance 
Officer

Page 5



Item 
No.

Decision Action by

 
9. LOCAL GOVERNMENT ETHICAL STANDARDS

The long awaited review on Local Government Ethical Standards was 
published by the Committee on Standards in Public Life on 30 January 2019.  
The Audit Committee is responsible for noting the report of the Committee 
on Standards in Public Life and to consider any actions arising from it to 
feed into future work programming.

Decision

RESOLVED – that 
a) the report be noted; 
b) the Monitoring Officer will consider the list of best practice 

recommendations and discuss these with the Cumbrian Monitoring 
Officers Group and CALC any potential revisions to the existing code of 
conduct and/or guidance to take account of these recommendations for 
a further report back be noted.

Reason for Decision

The Council is committed to maintaining high standards in public life.

Alternative options considered and rejected (if any)

No other options were considered.

Sarah 
Pemberton, 
Head of 
Governance and 
Commercial

Page 6



Item 
No.

Decision Action by

 
10. DRAFT – ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING POLICY

To receive and consider the updated and revised Anti-Money Laundering 
Policy (the Policy) for Copeland Borough Council.

Decision

RESOLVED – that the draft Anti-Money Laundering Policy be approved.

Reason for Decision

The Council is committed to the highest possible standards of conduct and 
has appropriate and proportionate anti-money-laundering safeguards and 
reporting arrangements.  The Policy confirms all Members and employees 
are required to comply and report any concerns.

Alternative options considered and rejected (if any)

No other options were considered.

Pat Graham, 
Chief Executive.

Page 7



Item 
No.

Decision Action by

 
11. DRAFT – FRAUD PREVENTION AND ANTI-CORRUPTION STRATEGY

To receive and consider the updated and revised Fraud Prevention and Anti-
Corruption Strategy (the Strategy) for Copeland Borough Council. 

Decision

RESOLVED – that the new Fraud Prevention and Anti-Corruption Strategy be 
approved.

Reason for Decision

This report presents Copeland Borough Council’s Fraud Prevention and 
Anti-Corruption Strategy, aligned to the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy guidelines.

Alternative options considered and rejected (if any)

N/A

Pat Graham, 
Chief Executive.

Page 8



Item 
No.

Decision Action by

 
12. UPDATE ON COPELAND BOROUGH COUNCIL’S CONNECTING CUMBRIA’S 

HIDDEN COAST PROGRAMME

To receive an update on Connecting Cumbria’s Hidden Coast and the 
Executive are asked to note that the Council is now in receipt of £1,665,327 
of external funding secured to deliver the programme, as signed off by Full 
Council in January 2019.

Decision

RESOLVED: that 

a) the progress made against Cumbria’s Hidden Coast programme, 
including the governance proposals to oversee the Council’s 
Accountable Body role be noted, 

b) the receipt of external funding (£1,665,327) as agreed by Full Council, 
comprising £1,059,499 from Coastal Communities Fund (MHCLG) and 
£605,828 from Sellafield Ltd Social Impact Fund be noted.

c) further funding will be sought to add value to phase 1 and allow 
expansion of the programme into phase 2, currently targeting the Rural 
Payments Agency and Copeland Community Fund be agreed, and

d) the Council will enter into partner agreements and procure the services 
required to deliver the project to time and to budget, in line with the 
Council’s financial regulations and procurement and contract standing 
orders be agreed.

Reason for Decision

Through the Economic Development Service Plan, the Council has agreed 
several projects and objectives to bring forward regeneration and growth in 
the Borough, including the Connecting Cumbria’s Hidden Coast programme.  
The benefit to Copeland residents from the delivery of the coastal 
programme is an increase in investment through external funding secured 
by the team; with a knock-on increase in jobs, new businesses and visitors 
to the area.  

Alternative options considered and rejected (if any)

N/A

Julie Betteridge,     
Executive 
Director, 
Operations.

Page 9



Item 
No.

Decision Action by

 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

Decision

RESOLVED – that the press and public be excluded for the remaining item of 
business in view of the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 3 of part 1 of the Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972 (as amended)

Reason for Decision

N/A

Alternative options considered and rejected (if any)

N/A

N/A

Page 10



Item 
No.

Decision Action by

 
13. ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING NETWORK PROJECT

The Council, together with a number of partners, has been party to 
discussions with a developer relating to the installation of a network of 
smart, rapid Electric Vehicle (EV) charging points in Copeland, some of 
which are sited on Council-owned car parks. The Council has been involved 
in a Feasibility Study to underpin the development of the business case for 
the project. Based on the outcome of this Feasibility Study, the next stage 
will be negotiation and agreement of contracts for delivery of the project. 
The Council are not committing financially at this stage and further detail 
will be presented to Executive Committee should the proposals prove 
feasible.

Decision

RESOLVED: that in principle and without prejudice, the Council’s ongoing 
engagement with prospective developers of EV charging infrastructure in 
Copeland be supported.

Reason for Decision

The proposals offer the Council the opportunity to be a leader in an 
emerging low carbon initiative, to position Copeland at the forefront of the 
energy and transport sectors, to enhance the Council’s service offering to 
residents, businesses and visitors; and to contribute to the Council’s wider 
objectives around building a resilient economy and thriving community.

Alternative options considered and rejected (if any)

N/A

Pat Graham, 
Chief Executive.

Page 11



Item 
No.

Decision Action by

 
14. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING:

Decision

It was noted that the next meeting of the Executive would be held on 
Monday 22 July 2019 at 10:00am in the Bainbridge Room.

Reason for Decision

N/A

Alternative options considered and rejected (if any)

N/A

N/A

The Meeting closed at 4:35 pm 

Mayor

Page 12



 
 

EXEC 22 July 2019
MAYOR’S FORWARD PLAN AND WORK PLAN 

 
Part A of this Plan is published in accordance with the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) 
(England) Regulations 2012. It provides details of key decisions which the Executive will be making during the above period. 
 
A key decision is a decision made by the Mayor either by himself, through his Executive, by individual Executive members or by officers 
performing an Executive function and is one which either results in the Council incurring expenditure or making savings which are significant 
(compared to the local authority’s budget for the service or function to which the decision relates) or is one which is significant in terms of its 
effects on communities living or working in an area comprising of two or more wards or electoral divisions in the area. The Council’s 
constitution states that ‘significant’ includes (a) any decision by the Executive in relation to proposed recommendations to Council to amend 
the policy framework; (b) any single item of expenditure or savings in excess of £50,000; or (c) any decision which is likely to have a 
permanent or long term (more than 5 years) effect on the Council or the Borough. 
 
A key decision cannot be made until at least 28 clear days has elapsed between publication of this document and the day the decision is made. 
An exception to this rule is where such publication of intention is impracticable. In those circumstances the period of 28 clear days may be 
reduced to 5 clear days provided that the chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee has been informed of the matter and shorter 
notice has been publicised. If 5 clear days cannot be given then a decision may only be made if the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee has agreed to the making of the decision on the grounds that the decision is urgent and cannot unreasonably be deferred. 
 
Where the decision maker is shown to be the Executive, the Executive will comprise of Mayor Mike Starkie and Councillors David Moore as 
Deputy Mayor, Michael McVeigh, Gwynneth Everett and Steven Morgan.
 
Copies of any document listed in the plan will be available from the officer shown in the table when the report is released, subject to them not 
containing confidential or exempt information. 
 
Part B of this Plan is additional items which are to be considered which are not considered to be key decisions. 
 
  

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 6



PART A

Matter in respect of 
which a key decision is to 
be made 

Who will make the 
key decision 

Date on which the decision 
will be made 

List of documents 
decision maker will 
consider and who is the 
relevant contact officer 

Likely to contain 
confidential or exempt 
information 
 

Contract Standing Orders Executive Executive 19 August 2019 Sarah Pemberton –
Head of Governance & 
Commercial (M.O.)

No

Commercial Strategy Executive  Executive 19 August 2019 Sarah Pemberton –
Head of Governance & 
Commercial (M.O.)

No

Annual Governance 
Statement

Executive  Executive 19 August 2019 Sarah Pemberton –
Head of Governance & 
Commercial (M.O.)

No

Corporate Strategy Executive  Executive 19 August 2019 
            

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

No

2019/20 Council 
Performance Plan –  
Quarter 1 

Executive  Executive 19 August 2019 
            

Sarah Pemberton –
Head of Governance & 
Commercial (M.O.)

No

P
age 14



2019/20 Finance Report
– Quarter 1 

Executive  Executive 19 August 2019 
                

Steven Brown – S151 
Officer
 

No

Nuclear Position 
Statements

Council Executive 19 August 2019 
Council 9 September 2019

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

No

Xmas Parking 
Arrangements

Executive Executive 16 September 2019 Julie Betteridge – 
Executive Director 
Operations

No

Local Plan Preferred 
Options

Council Council 9 September 2019 Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

No

2019/20 Council 
Performance Plan –  
Quarter 2 

Executive  Executive 4 November 2019 
            

Sarah Pemberton –
Head of Governance & 
Commercial (M.O.)

No

2019/20 Finance Report
– Quarter 2 

Executive  Executive 4 November 2019 
            

Steven Brown – S151 
Officer
 

No

Environment/Energy 
Policy Update

Executive  Executive 9 December 2019 
            

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

No

Amendments to 
Discretionary Relief Policy

Executive  Executive 13 January 2020 Julie Betteridge   – 
Executive Director 
Operations

No

Discount and Premium 
Policy

Council Executive 13 January 2020
Council 10 February 2020

Julie Betteridge   – 
Executive Director 
Operations

No

P
age 15



Budget Consultation 
Outcome

Executive Executive 13 January 2020 Steven Brown – S151 
Officer

No

Pay Policy Statement Council Council 10 February 2020 Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

No

Draft Budget Council Executive 13 January 2020
Council 10 February 2020

Steven Brown – S151 
Officer

No

2019/20 Council 
Performance Plan –  
Quarter 3 

Executive  Executive 10 February 2020 
            

Sarah Pemberton –
Head of Governance & 
Commercial (M.O.)

No

2019/20 Finance Report
– Quarter 3 

Executive  Executive 10 February 2020 
            

Steven Brown – S151 
Officer
 

No

2019/20 Council 
Performance Plan –  
Quarter 4 

Executive  Executive May 2020 
            

Sarah Pemberton –
Head of Governance & 
Commercial (M.O.)

No

2019/20 Finance Report
– Quarter 4 

Executive  Executive May 2020 
            

Steven Brown – S151 
Officer
 

No

P
age 16



 

PART B 
 

Report Who will make 
the decision 

Date on which the decision 
will be made 

List of documents decision maker 
will consider and who is the 
relevant contact officer 

Likely to contain 
confidential or 
exempt information  

Constitution changes Council Council 9 September 2019 Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

No 

Health and Safety 
Monitoring ½ Yearly Report  

Executive  Executive 9 December 2019 Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

No 

Pay Policy Statement Council Council 10 February 2020 Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

No 

 

P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

Exec 220719

Corporate Strategy 2016-2020 Performance Report – Quarter 4 of 2018/19

EXECUTIVE MEMBER:  Cllr David Moore

LEAD OFFICER: Sarah Pemberton, Head of Governance and Commercial

REPORT AUTHOR: Gillian Butterworth, Performance and Risk Management Officer

WHY HAS THIS REPORT COME TO THE EXECUTIVE? 
The Executive is responsible for managing the resources of the Council and seeking to 
ensure that best value through continuous improvement is embedded throughout all the 
Council’s business

RECOMMENDATION:

a) Note performance against the Corporate Strategy Delivery Plan and KPIs and any actions 
taken to improve compliance with targets. 

1.        INTRODUCTION

1.1 The Executive assess progress against the Corporate Strategy 2016-2020 through 
quarterly monitoring of a Corporate Strategy Delivery Plan and a suite of Key 
Performance Indicators.

1.2 This report provides a summary of performance against the Corporate Strategy 
Delivery Plan and the KPIs, it also offers context and remedial actions where 
Key Deliverables have not been fully achieved.  

1.3 Full details and analysis for all Key Deliverable and KPI are listed in the appendices.
 Appendix A - Corporate Delivery Plan Report for Q4 of 2018/19.
 Appendix B - Key Performance Indicator Report for Q4 of 2018/19.  

2. PROGRESS AND PERFORMANCE 

2.1 The Corporate Strategy Delivery Plan

2.2 There were twenty nine Key Deliverables set in the Corporate Strategy Delivery Plan 
for 2018/19, of which twenty were achieved in full (69%).

 Of those Key Deliverables that were not fully completed, six were 75% complete at 
the end of Quarter 4.
 

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



2

2.3 Table one shows the progress of each key deliverables as at Quarter 4 of 2018/19 
(March 19).

Note: The progress percentage is based on the number of milestones set and 
achieved for each individual deliverable.

Table1

Key Deliverable Progress in 
2018/19

KD1 – Vision on four towns development 100%
KD2 – Copeland Pride of Place 100%
KD3 – Parking Strategy 100%
KD4 – Local Housing Solutions 100%
KD5 – Environmental Regeneration Programme 100%
KD6 – Local Plan 1%
KD7 – Egremont Flood Defenses 100%
KD8 – Open for Business 100%
KD9 – Digital Strategy 100%

Ambition 1
Town Center 
Regeneration

KD10 – Destination Management Organisation 100%

KD11 – Beacon Museum 5 year Business Plan 50%
KD 12 -  Bereavement Services Improvement Plan 100%
KD 13 – Expanded Trade Waste offer 33%

Ambition 2
Commercialisation

KD 14 – Asset Management Strategy 75%
KD 15 – Social Inclusion 100%
KD 16 – Social Investment Programme 100%

KD 17 – Beacon Education Programme 100%

KD18 – Well Whitehaven 100%

KD 19 – Copeland Work and Skills Programme 100%
KD 20 – Copeland Apprenticeship Scheme 100%
KD 21 – Copeland Health and Wellbeing Forum 100%
KD22 – Domestic Abuse Prevention Programme 100%

Ambition 3
Skills, Employment 
and Social 
wellbeing

KD 23 – Copeland Hub 100%

KD 24 – Cyber Security 81%
KD 25 – Document Management System (IDOX) 75%
KD 26 – Website refit 75%
KD 27 – GIS uplift 100%
KD 28 – Modgov update 75%

Ambition 4
Strengthen the way 
we operate

KD 29 – Information Management and Cyber Security 75%

2.4 Town Centre Regeneration

Page 20



3

To realise our ambitions for Town Centre Regeneration, the Council worked to 
achieve ten Key Deliverables during 2018/19, of these nine were achieved in full.

2.5 Key Deliverable 6_ The Local Plan. This key deliverable was delayed due to limited 
staff resources and difficulties in recruiting suitably qualified personnel. A fixed term 
appointment in July 2019 has provided a temporary boost to capacity in the Strategic 
Planning Team and the Preferred Options consultation is now expected to take place 
in Quarter 3 of 2019-20, this will then inform the Pre-Submission Draft of the Local 
Plan.

2.6 Commercialisation
Under the operational commercialisation agenda, we identified four key deliverables 
to be achieved in 2018/19, of these one was achieved in full, this was the 
Bereavement Services Improvement Plan. 

2.7 Commercialisation key deliverables that were not achieved in full were,

 Key Deliverable 11 - The Beacon Five Year business plan.  The funding for the 
business plan was agreed in July 2019, and an update on the funding position 
was presented at the last Council meeting. The Beacon business plan is in the 
final stages of development. 

 Key Deliverable 13 - Expanded Trade Waste Offer. Initial discussions were held 
with the commercial team to explore opportunities, however due to a lack of 
capacity within the Waste team, the project did not progress as quickly as 
expected. Additional capacity was secured in Quarter 4 with the appointment of 
a Deputy Community Services Manager and Waste Officer. Work is now planned 
to resume in 2019/20 to develop a business case for a Trade waste cardboard 
recycling service.

 Key Deliverable 14 - Asset management Strategy.  This Key Deliverable is 75% 
complete, the Asset Management Strategy has been drafted and approved by 
the Chief Executive.  The accompanying Asset Management Delivery Plan is 
currently being finalised and both strategy and action plan are expected to be 
agreed in full by Q3 of 2019/20.

2.8 Employment, Skills and Social Wellbeing 

Page 21



4

To realise our ambitions for Employment, Skills and Social Wellbeing, the Council set 
out nine Key Deliverables to be achieved in 2018/19, all of these were achieved in 
full. 

2.9 Strengthen the way we operate

To strengthen our own operations, we agreed six Key Deliverables to be achieved in  
2018/19,  of these one was completed in full and the remaining five were all at least 
75% complete at the end of Quarter 4.

The key deliverables that were not fully completed were,

 Key Deliverable 24 - Cyber Security.  This Key Deliverable was broken down into 
eleven milestones, of which nine (81%) were complete at the end of Quarter 4.

During 2018/19 a new ICT Manager took up post in Quarter 3 and focus 
remained on building resilience and redundancy into our IT systems and 
architecture post cyber-attack.  An ICT Strategy has been drafted and the 
priorities for the accompanying ICT Improvement plan are being defined, 
however the immediate priority for the service in 2019/20 is to carry out 
remediation works following our annual PSN Health Check to achieve PSN 
compliance.

 Key Deliverable 25 - Uniform Document Management System (IDOX).  The cloud 
based document management system for Planning, Building Control and Land 
Charges function has been built and key staff members have received training. 
However technical issue at the data migration and implementation stage have 
slowed completion of the project. Remedial configuration and testing is ongoing.

 Key Deliverable 26 - Website refit.  During 2018/19 the website was successfully 
moved to a new cloud-based web post.  Work on the outstanding website re-skin 
has commenced and is expected to be completed in-house by Quarter 2, 
2019/20.

 Key Deliverable 28 - Modgov upgrade.  The capabilities of Modgov were explored 
and expanded to provide a more uniform and less staff intensive approach to 
publishing committee agenda items.  The Democratic Services Team received 
training, and, learning has been cascaded to Managers.  The final stage of uptake 
is for the Senior Management team to undergo training on the upgraded system.

 Key Deliverable 29 - Data Protection. This Key Deliverable is 75% complete.  The 
outstanding refresh to the Information Management Strategy will be resumed in 
Quarter 3 of 2019/20 when the new Data Protection Officer takes up post.

Page 22



5

2.10 Key Performance Indicators 
To quantify our achievement against the Corporate Strategy, the Council monitored 
twenty five Key Performance Indicators in 2018/19.  

2.11 At the end of Quarter 4, eighteen KPIs met or exceeded their annual targets, and a 
further two KPIs were within the variances set against the annual target.  When 
combined, this represents 80%. (20 out of 25)

2.12 From the suite of twenty five KPIs that were monitored, we were able to compare 
the end of year figures of twenty KPIs to that of the previous year (2017/18).

End of year figures showed that sixteen out of twenty comparable KPIs had 
improved performance since last year and a further two KPIs remained on target, 
this represents a combined 90% of KPIs where performance is as good as, or better, 
than last year.(18 out of 20).

2.13 Table B shows ‘at a glance’ which KPIs met their annual targets. 
Table B

Key Performance Indicator Was the 
annual 
target met?

KPI 1.1 Percentage of Council Tax collected

KPI 1.2  Number empty homes <6months brought back into use

KPI 1.3 Number of new homes approved

KPI 1.6 Number of new EXECUTIVE homes built

KPI 1.7 External funding for Economic Development Secured

KPI 3.1  Percentage of Non-domestic Rates Collected

KPI 3.2 Number of apprenticeships within the Council each year

KPI 3.5 a_ Speed of processing - New Housing Benefits claims

KPI 3.6 a_ Speed of processing - changes of circumstances for Housing 
Benefits claims

KPI 3.6 b_ Speed of processing - changes of circumstances for Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme claims

KPI 3.8 Homeless relief cases

KPI 3.9 Domestic Abuse Project

KPI 4.1 Percentage of complaints resolved at stage one

KPI 4.3 b_ Percentage reduction in residual household waste

KPI 4.4b Percentage CTAX collected using DDeb payment method

KPI 5.1 Percentage of 'major' planning applications determined within 13 
weeks

Page 23



6

Key Performance Indicator Was the 
annual 
target met?

KPI 5.2 Percentage of planning 'minor' planning applications determined 
within 8 weeks

KPI 5.3 Percentage of 'other' applications determined within 8 weeks

KPI 4.2 Percentage of Freedom of information requests resolved within 
timescale

KPI 4.3 a_ Percentage of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and 
composting

KPI 1.4 Number of new homes built

KPI 1.5 Number of new AFFORDABLE homes built

KPI 2.1 Additional income generated through Commercial operational 
activity

KPI 3.5 b Speed of processing - New Council Tax Reduction Scheme claims

KPI 4.4a Percentage of NDR collected using Direct Debit payment method

Target met Performance is within variance       
for KPIs

Target not met        

2.14 For the five KPIs that did not meet target, the following context is offered,

 KPI 1.4 Number of new homes built.
There were 120 additional homes built during 2018/19, against a target of 300.  
This is fairly consistent with completions since the Core Strategy was adopted. 
Our monitoring of new homes approved shows that Planning permission has 
been granted for more homes than are built each year.  Officers have been 
working hard to attract new developers into the borough.  These new developers 
are getting close to acquiring sites and increased development is expected over 
the next year or so as new house builders start to build in the borough.

 KPI 1.5: Number of new affordable homes built
Whilst there were no affordable homes built during 2018/19, 54 were approved 
and are expected to be built within the next couple of years.

 KPI 2.1: Additional income generated through Commercial activity.
This KPI monitored the net additional income generated by four of our income 
generating services.  Although the target increase of £139,000 was not met, 
there was an increase in income compared to 2017/18.  A CLT restructure in 
Quarter 1 of 2019/20 includes the post ‘Head of Operational and Commercial 
Services’.  A priority for this new portfolio holder, working with the Head of 
Commercial Strategy, will be to undertake due diligence regarding future 
investment opportunities to grow our revenue income.

Page 24



7

 KPI 3.5b: Speed of processing New Council Tax Reduction Scheme claims
The annual average for 2018/19 was 27.39 days, against a target of 22 days to 
process a new CTRS claim, however performance improvement and individual 
quarterly figures show that the actual number of days to process new CTRS 
claims has met target for the last two quarters of 2018/19 (since October 2018).

 KPI 4.4a: Percentage of Business rates (NNDR) collected using DD payment 
method - 33.56% uptake against a target of 60%.  NNDR has a low take-up rate as 
many businesses choose to pay annual business rates bill by other methods such 
as BACS.

2.15 Data and trend monitoring
The Council monitor five additional performance indicators as they have been 
identified as relevant to the ambitions of our Corporate Strategy.
It is to be noted that these outcomes are not within Council control, and therefore 
have no annual target set by us.

Data/trends to be monitored Number at 
end of Q4 
2018/19

Compared 
to 2017/18

Number of empty business premises within the borough. 202 176

Number of new businesses within the borough. 
(New business registrations)

114 49

Number of repeat homelessness cases.in 2 years 19 12

Number of homelessness cases where Welfare Reform is a 
factor.

22 16

Number of Domestic Violence Incidents with a repeat victim. 702 (49%) 518 (48%) 

  3.0 CONCLUSIONS

The 2018/19 outturn position shows that,

Page 25



8

 69% of Key Deliverables were completed in full,
 80% of KPIs have met their annual targets (included 2 within variances) 
 90% of comparable KPIs have improved or maintained performance when 

compared to last year.

 Where progress or targets were not met, context and remedial actions have been 
offered either in the body of the report or as part of the appendices.

4.          STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS 

4.1 The Monitoring Officer’s comments are:  
This report provides a progress update to the Executive on key deliverables arising 
from the Corporate Strategy.  Any legal issues arising from any individual key 
deliverables will be dealt with as appropriate. 

4.2 The Section 151 Officer’s comments are: 
The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy, 2018/19 Budget and Capital Plan 
underpins the 2016-2020 Corporate Strategy. 

4.3 EIA Comments: 
The Corporate Strategy and Service Plans against which performance is measured 
have undergone Equality Impact Assessments.  Individual projects and partnership 
delivery against the Corporate Delivery Plan are subject to provide EIAs.

4.4 Policy Framework: 
Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules as set down in the Council’s 
Constitution. This report directly reports on the delivery of the Corporate Strategy 
and associated documents.

5.  APPENDICIES

Appendix A - Corporate Delivery Plan Report for Q4 of 2018/19.

Appendix B - Key Performance Indicator Report for Q4 of 2018/19.

Page 26



Appendix A

1

Corporate Delivery Plan Report for Quarter 4 of 2018/19

  Town Centre Regeneration

Key Deliverable 01 
Agreed corporate vision on the development of Copeland’s tour main towns Overall Progress of Key Deliverable          

Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Q1 Q1 Three towns (Cleator Moor, Egremont and Millom) to 
create final phase 1 documents

Work programme agreed with Arup and documents currently being updated

Q2 Q2 Three towns (Cleator Moor, Egremont and Millom) to 
Executive for approval

Papers went to August Executive meeting

To complete the partnership master-
planning activity for the four towns 
started in 2017/18 and move to 
implementation of early priorities 
including Whitehaven North Shore 
development and an Innovation 
Centre approach and collaborative 
schemes in other towns to improve 
service centres and offer hub 
arrangements. Q3 Q3 Communications and socialising of plans with 

relevant communities including Whitehaven Town 
Council engagement.

Three towns (Millom, Egremont, and Cleator Moor) complete.  Corporate decision to 
hold Whitehaven Masterplan as a framework while key issues progress (including 
Sellafield accommodation and movement strategies, North Shore, Whitehaven Relief 
road, etc.) and revisit in 2019/20.

Key Deliverable 02 Implement the public realm element of CPoP Overall Progress of Key Deliverable          
Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Q1 Q1 Project brief out to tender and consultant appointed On track, tender out and consultant appointed

Q2 Q2 Consultation complete and outline design in place Consultation extended at request of Full Council.  Will complete in October

Q4 Q3 Detailed design agreed and procurement of 
contractor under way

Detailed designs for Whitehaven and Cleator Moor have been drawn up as a result of 
public consultation.  These are being back to the Project Group, then the respective 
Town Councils during Q4.  Millom and Egremont are both subject to potential TROs 
(Traffic Regulation Orders), so are being advanced with County involvement.
Schemes all agreed now for Whitehaven, Cleator Moor and Millom.  Procurement of 
Contractor in 2019/20.

Expanding the reach of the Pride of 
Place regeneration scheme through 
the recent changes made and 
implementing the public realm 
element.

Q4 Q4 Capital works started Will be started in 2019/20. Timeframes for commencement of capital works will finalised 
against the Future Highstreets and Highstreets Heritage Action Zone bids.

P
age 27



Appendix A

2

Key Deliverable 03 - Parking Strategy Overall Progress of Key Deliverable          
Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Q2 Q2 Scope of work agreed During Quarter one an initial meeting was held with key partners to start to scope the 
strategy and discuss the use of digital innovation in parking.

Q3 Q3 Partnership arrangements in place CCC carried out tender exercise to procure agreed partner to deliver parking strategy.  
SL agreed in principle to fund agreed partner on Parking Strategy.

Working with strategic partners to 
deliver a cohesive car parking 
strategy to address needs and 
concerns of residents, businesses, 
workers and visitors to Whitehaven.

Q4 Q4Parking Strategy in Place The parking strategy work is progressing under a joint approach with SL, CCC and CBC.
Initial works include a draft baseline report auditing current parking provision, this will be 
signed off in July.  
The deadline for delivery remains early 2020.

Key Deliverable 04 - Support communities to develop Local housing solutions. Overall Progress of Key Deliverable          
Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Q1 Q1 First scheme agreed Third Scheme agreed - Ulpha Alms Houses
 (previous two - Distington and Time to Change underway)

Q2 Q2 Grant spend profiling and Third (Ulpha) scheme 
progressed to next phase o

Three projects in receipt of funding and being monitored, bid for 82k made to homes 
England, profiling of spend reported through to full council this quarter

Q4 Q4 Grant spend profiling and number of schemes 
progressed to next phase of key delivery.

 

Maintain our focus on community led 
housing opportunities throughout 
the borough and in particular where 
second home ownership impacts on 
both urban and rural settlements 
housing supply and affordability.

Q4 Q4 Rural Housing Needs Evaluation Model – report 
receive and shared with Cumbria Housing Group.

Deadline pushed back to End July due to problems with testing and need to refine the 
model

Key Deliverable 05 - Develop an environmental regeneration programme. Overall Progress of Key Deliverable          
Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Q1 Q1 Coastal Initiative development and funding bid made  

Q2

Q2 audit and mapping of open spaces and identification 
of scope opportunities

Stage 1 (June - November 2018):
• Reviewing and updating grounds maintenance plot information to ensure ownership 
and maintenance responsibilities are up to date. 
• Developing a new GIS layer to incorporate CBC grounds maintenance information to 
include plot feature, quantity, and area and maintenance frequencies. 

To work with key partners in and 
outside the borough to develop a 
vision and programme of Heritage 
assets and Open Spaces to add 
value and complement the World 
Heritage Site Status as it impacts on 
the social, environmental and 
economic wellbeing of Copeland

Q3 Q3 Coastal initiative scope finalised Coastal programme updated and Business Case in place.  Application to Coastal 
Communities Fund submitted to support programme, with further applications ongoing.

P
age 28



Appendix A

3

Key Deliverable 06 
Local Plan Overall Progress of Key Deliverable         

Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Q3

Q3 Consult on Preferred Options for the Local Plan The production of the Local Plan has been slowed due to staff resource and recruitment 
issues.  As such the Preferred Options are now expected to be ready for consultation 
later in 2019 (Summer/early Autumn).  This will have a knock on effect on the production 
of the Pre-Submission Draft of the Local Plan.

To review and update the Copeland 
Local Plan to enable creative and 
new housing led regeneration 
schemes to be identified and 
delivered.

Q4 Q4 Agreement of Pre-submission draft Local Plan by 
Full Council Q1 2019-20

This has been delayed due to lack of staff resources (difficulty recruiting) and Preferred 
Options consultation is expected in late summer/autumn. 

Key Deliverable 07 
CBC role is to assist community engagement re Egremont Flood Defences Overall Progress of Key Deliverable         

Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

To work with lead partners and the 
communities of Egremont in 
ensuring the delivery of the 
externally funded Egremont Flood 
Defences planned for Skirting and 
Whangs Beck.

Q4

Q4 Community engagement and preparations to start 
work on site and involvement in the project.

Community information session complete
Support to elected members for community engagement

Key Deliverable 08 
Open for business conference and 2 smaller spin-off summits Overall Progress of Key Deliverable         

Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Q1 Q1 Hold second OFB Conference Second open for business conference held in April 2018

Q2 Q2 1 OFB specialized spin-off summit Specialised OFB Tourism Seminar is organized for 23rd November 2018.  This is to be 
followed by workshops to be held at the Beacon on 5th and 12th November 2018.

Deliver a second Open for Business 
Conference to continue the 
momentum built from the first two 
years of the Mayors engagement 
with all levels of the local business 
community and national supply 
chain operating locally.

Q4
Q4 Hold second spin-off summit Second summit on Social inclusion is planned for October 2019.

P
age 29



Appendix A

4

Key Deliverable 09 
Agreed corporate approach on development of the digital approaches to support 
social and economic diversification

Overall Progress of Key Deliverable         

Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Q4 Q3 Development of digital brief and priorities Funding in place, with brief to be completed in Q4Finish early work on digital 
opportunities under the Copeland 
Growth Strategy through the launch 
and running early projects of a 
Copeland Digital Strategy aimed at 
economic and social benefits for 
residents and businesses.

Q4

Q4 Agreed partnership approach to deliver against digital 
priorities

A corporate decision was made to hold this funding and amalgamate it with the Future 
Highstreets funding.  Monies will be used against the digital stream of the Future 
Highstreets works.

Key Deliverable 10 
Set up a Destination Management Organisation West Cumbria led by UCLan. Overall Progress of Key Deliverable         

Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Q2 Q2 1stDraft Destination Management Plan agreed and 
TIC development resource secured (student placement)

Student in place since Sept

Q2

Q2 DMO Board set up and governance in place. A Destination Management arrangement has been put in place which oversees the 
placement students on Tourism in both Copeland and Allerdale and link their work 
together through a joint working arrangement.
A business led tourism group is in place for Copeland 

Q3 Q3 TIC operational Tourist Information Point will be operational for Easter 2019 (Q4)

Set up a DMO West Cumbria led by 
UCLan.
Set up a TIC in Whitehaven
Actively contribute and work with 
UCLAN and other West Cumbria 
partners to target the tourism 
opportunities in the borough 
including the opening of a Tourist 
Information Centre in Whitehaven.

Q4 Q4 TIC embedded TIC Opened April 2019

P
age 30



Appendix A

5

Key Deliverable 11 
Beacon Museum - New five year collaboration agreement and 
business plan with our key collaborator Sellafield.

Overall Progress of Key Deliverable         

Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Q2
Q2 18-19 –Draft Five Year Business 
Plan for the Beacon Museum 

Draft in progressProduce and agree a second five 
year collaborative commercial 
business plan for the Beacon 
Museum (2019-2024)

Q3 Q3 Business plan agreed by 
Executive and Full Council.

Business Plan funding agreed in July 2019 and in business plan in final stages of  development at end of Q4 
2018-19

Key Deliverable 12 
Bereavement services investment programme. Overall Progress of Key Deliverable         

Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Q1 Q1 Establish a Project Management 
Team and procure external support.

Fortnightly project team established and monthly meeting chaired by the Executive Director including service 
representatives.

Q2

Q2 Final design of the Crematorium 
investment.

Rose Project Management commissioned as consultants to support the procurement of the second cremator / 
abatement system and the crematorium redesign, including second chapel area. Tendering works underway to 
secure specialist project management and architect resources to progress project to the next stage.

Q2

Review and draft new Cemetery and 
Crematorium Regulations and engage 
Overview & Scrutiny Panel in this 
process

First draft of revisions prepared and presented to OSC panel on 30 July 2018.  Work is now underway to 
prepare a final draft for approval which incorporates recommendations from OSC, and a Communications Plan 
to support the implementation of the new rules.

Q4

Q4 – Contract/works completed. Two procurement exercises were undertaken to complete the project design team and a technical project 
manager has been appointed from APSE (Association of Public Sector Excellence) 
An architect appointed and tenders submitted for the supply and installation of a second cremator with a 
contract awarded in January 2019.  
The enabling works for this element of the programme expected to commence in April / May 2019.
Elected Member briefings and stakeholder engagement sessions were held on 13 March 2019 
Building works at the crematorium are planned to commence in autumn and will include careful planning to 
minimise disruption and maintain service delivery.
A refresh of our Crematorium and Cemetery Management Rules was presented and approved by the Council’s 
Executive on 12 February 2019.  

To deliver the Bereavement Services 
investment programme (2018-2021) 
beginning with the Distington 
Crematorium

Q4
Q4 - Impact on existing service
Reporting quarterly within our existing 
Project Management Framework.

• Fortnightly project management meetings in place.   Monthly Programme oversight meetings in place 

• Risk Register in place and reviewed at above meetings  

Commercialisation

P
age 31



Appendix A

6

Q4

Q4 Business Plan and contract in 
place and works started.

Actions ongoing - expected completion of all now expected in Q4
Technical Project Manager appointed
Architect Services tendered and appointed
Design team established.
Cremator tender published and currently being evaluated

Q4 Q4 Planning application approval Planning application approval now expected in Q4

Key Deliverable 13 
Offer targeted service to Trade Waste customers against bulky 
and cardboard.

Overall Progress of Key Deliverable         

Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Q1

Q1 - Initial scoping of project to 
develop and expand Trade Waste 
Services

Despite the domestic recycling service being the focus of the Waste team’s attention during the period, the 
trade waste customer base continues to increase including during Q1. Methods used to increase customer 
base include refreshed advertising leaflet sent out with annual NNDR bills and advertising on the side of our 
vehicles.
Initial exploration with input from the commercial team  concluded that a project team would be formed to 
support opportunities to  development and further expand trade waste services, It is now anticipated that 
Project plan and PID to develop  will be drafted in Q3

Q3
Q3 Setting up project with plan and 
PID which set out all targets and 
timescale.

While there has been initial discussions involving the commercial team, due to a lack of capacity within the 
Waste team, this project has not been progressed. Some additional capacity will be available on Q4 with the 
appointment of the new Deputy community Services manager.

Develop our trade waste services 
and in particular look to the 
opportunities to shift to recycling 
bulky commercial materials and 
service efficiencies

Q4
Q4 - Review of outcomes report. This objective has been revised and included in the Community Services Service Plan for 2019-20. The aim is 

to provide a trade waste cardboard recycling service for businesses in the Copeland area.

Key Deliverable 14 
Approval of Asset Management Strategy (AMS) Overall Progress of Key Deliverable                                                                            

Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Q1
Successful recruitment of Property 
and Assets Manager

Property and Estates Manager now in post

Q3 Asset Management Strategy 
Drafted

Two working group meetings held and frequency of meetings changed to weekly. The CAT policy is going to 
OSC on 8th Feb and then to Exec on 12th.

Q4 AMS Approval  Asset Management Strategy drafted and approved by Corporate Director.  Strategy will be presented to CLT, 
Executive and relevant Committees in Q2/Q3 of 2019/20

Focus on the strategic management 
of our assets to maximise 
commercial opportunities and where 
appropriate ensure acquisition of 
assets with commercial potential

Q4 ASM implementation and delivery 
plan drafted for 2019-2 budget

 AMS delivery plan currently being drafted by Property and Estates Manager.  This will be subject to approval 
by CLT, the Executive and relevant Committees

P
age 32



Appendix A

7

 Employment, Skills and Social Well-being

Key Deliverable 15 
Social Inclusion Overall Progress of Key Deliverable         

Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Q1

Q1 Annual review of strategic partnerships significance. CLT review of strategic partnerships carried out in Q1.  With recapped details about 
whether CBC is the lead partner and whether the partnership is statutory. Annual report 
to be received by Audit and Governance Committee in Q2.

Q2

Q2 Launch council wide social inclusion check list to be 
embedded and used by all departments.

This has been put back to Q4 as SI Board has been revising policy and action plan to 
go to full council.  This needs to happen first then roll out check list

Q3 Q3 Social Inclusion Action Plan The Social Inclusion Board meets monthly and the SI action plan is reviewed each time.  

To use Council’s resources, partners 
and commitments to ensure relevant 
assets are available to underpin the 
social inclusion policy priorities and 
programme.

Q4
Q4 Social Inclusion annual report ‘outturn position’. Social Inclusion Policy review and update were presented to the Executive in April 2019.

Social Inclusion Action plan progress and outcomes considered  at end of year Social 
Inclusion Forum Meeting in April

Key Deliverable 16 
Social Investment Programme Overall Progress of Key Deliverable         

Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Q1

Q1 Monthly meetings with DWP, PEC, CAB, credit union 
and other relevant orgs to discuss and mitigate the impact 
of digital and financial exclusion.

Monthly meetings continue.   Through meetings the DPA with DWP is monitored in 
relation to Universal Credit full service and the impact of welfare reform.

Q1
Q1 Social investment programme priorities agreed by 
Executive. 

Report drafted for Executive Q1.  Executive postponed to Q2 where're report will be 
presented for agreement.

Keep our strong commitment to our 
social inclusion policy through our 
programme of projects and delivery 
through a range of local agencies 
closest to vulnerable residents of 
Copeland.
 
Working closely with our partners we 
aim to keep focused on the impact Q2 Q2 Financial inclusion project agreed Funding via CCF approved so this constitutes project having been agreed, preparation 

of CCF grant documentation and SLA underway

P
age 33



Appendix A

8

Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Q4
Q4 Delivery Partnership Agreement annual report ‘outturn 
position’.

 of welfare reform in the borough and 
ensuring available resources are 
targeted to alleviate impact on 
families and individual residents.

Q4 Q4 Social Investment programme annual report ‘outturn 
position’.

Social Inclusion annual report and programme for 2019-20 was presented to the 
Executive in April 2019.

Key Deliverable 17 Beacon Education Programme Overall Progress of Key Deliverable         
Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Q1
Q1 Deliver programme and new project New programme and project agreed.  'A brave new world' project focusing on the 100 

years armistice since the end of WW1 has engaged with a number of local schools 
during Q1. 

Q2 Q2 Deliver programme and deliver 1 new project Poppies project  - school and family engagement project for remembrance Sunday

Q3 Q3 Review programme and identify additional resources Review of draft learning programme awaiting further discussion from leadership team. 
Additional resources/funding streams to be finalised

Education and learning approach, in 
collaboration with SL and with West 
Cumbrian Schools to ensuring 
relevance with the national 
curriculum and local interest and 
heritage looking to opportunities to 
expand the offer moving forward.

Q4 Q4 Set priorities for programme next year. During 2018-19 the Beacon Museum welcomed 5,117 learners, held 250 schools 
sessions and hosted 13 exhibitions.

Key Deliverable 18 Well Whitehaven Overall Progress of Key Deliverable         
Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Work with local industry and 
partners to ensure resources are 
leveraged to make a difference to 
the lives of Copeland residents.

Q4

Q4 Year-end reports End of year report presented to funders in Q4 and next tranche funding secured.

Key Deliverable 19 Delivery of the Copeland Work and Skills Programme Overall Progress of Key Deliverable         
Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Q1
Q1 Start new work experience pilot Pilot underway with Copeland as a key partner. Match funding for 'Raising our Potential' 

project was committed by CCF in Q1.
Continue with our leadership role 
and facilitation of the Copeland Skills 
and Work Partnership and 
Programme. Identifying and 
enabling focused and Q2 Q2 Realising our potential project launched. Agreed launch date of 1st November

P
age 34



Appendix A

9

Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Q3 Q3 Agreed priorities with partners moving forward Priorities agreed with Work and Skills Partnership, plus early discussions held with 
potential funding partners.

complementary projects that meet 
gaps in services needed thereby 
benefitting local residents and 
maintaining local provision of 
services.

Q4
Q4 New programme developed for next phase of delivery Annual review carried out and new programme developed for 2019/20 in Q4 with 50% 

funding agreed.

Key Deliverable 20 
Six additional apprentices at Copeland Overall Progress of Key Deliverable         

Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Q1
Q1 Initiate recruitment process Adverts for apprentices were posted in Q1.  Closing date for shortlisting is 30th July 

2018.

Q2 Q2 apprentices to start 5 External and 1 Internal Apprentice started on 3/9/2018.  

Expand the Copeland Apprentice 
Scheme through a second cohort of 
six apprentices to the Council.

Q3 Q3 Successful completion of 2017/18 progression and 
evaluation.

Evolution completed.  All 6 apprentices in 2017/18 cohort to be offered 1 extension to 
apprenticeship until March 2020.

Key Deliverable 21 
Health and wellbeing Forum Overall Progress of Key Deliverable         

Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Q1

Q1 regular representation at Copeland Health and 
wellbeing Forum to monitor delivery against Health and 
wellbeing priorities.

Copeland Health and wellbeing Forum continue to meet regularly.  In Q1 the forum was 
expanded, reviewed priorities will be drafted and agreed in Q2.

Q2

Q2 Forum priorities reviewed and agreed. Priorities reviewed and agreed three priority projects, these are social prescribing 
project, healthy towns and places and healthy weight for all, with a focus on primary 
children.  The H&WB Forum also continue to support alcohol awareness and hoarding 
projects.

Q3

Q3 Evaluating impact of projects  Ongoing review of project impacts.

Using the Copeland Health and 
Wellbeing Forum to ensure health 
and care resources are allocated to 
Copeland and that joint working is 
responsive to local issues and needs 
particularly around physical health 
through our contract with leisure 
providers Greenwich Leisure Limited 
and our range of existing service 
delivery areas which impact on all 
aspects of health and wellbeing.

Q4 Q4 End of year review report. Ongoing review of projects used to inform priorities for 2019/20.

P
age 35



Appendix A

10

Key Deliverable 22 
Domestic Abuse & Sexual Exploitation Prevention Project Overall Progress of Key Deliverable         

Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Q1

Newspaper and social medial released promoting the 
service

Three media campaigns to promote the service have been carried out to date, these 
were in September and December 2017 and June 2018.  Media campaigns have 
included, press releases, TV and radio interviews and social media releases.

Q1

Quarterly review of service user feedback through KPI This KPI is about closed cases - whilst we have had over 20 cases only a small number 
have been closed as the cases are complex and lengthy.  Not reviewed in Q4 of 17/18 
for that reason.  Have agreed questions for survey, unfortunately key worker GR is off 
due to bereavement and so access to cases limited and the woman need to hear from 
GR that this contact will be made as they trust her and that trust needs to be protected. 
Set a new target deadline end August for Q1

Q2 Review effectiveness of referral processes to other key 
support services including Let Go, CAB, HAWCs

Meeting held with HAWCs and satisfaction survey undertaken.  further bid made for 
extension of services

The Copeland Hub has consolidated 
its role and multi-agency approach 
and we will work to assist in 
developing and growing the 
capability of the Hub to deliver 
increased joint activity and services.

Q4

Identify funding resources to maintain attention and 
project impacts.

 Current funding due to end December 2019.  Further funding bid submitted to SL Social 
Inclusion Fund and CCF and a decision is expected by the end of July 2019.
The DV and SE prevention project is a non-statutory wrap around service that we 
provide in addition to our statutory housing service.  The project has provided vital 
support to over 70 families since its launch and would be a great loss if not maintained.

Key Deliverable 23 
Copeland Hub Overall Progress of Key Deliverable         

Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Q1
Q1 ASB priority action plan Hub and ASB priority planning complete. Supported by Hub referral, investigation and 

partner meetings.

Q2 Q2 Monitoring local statistics Local stats are monitored and reviewed at regular joint meetings  

Q3 Q3Hub project developed Projects (JASS/Future Pathway/Priority Areas/CSP/PSPO's)

The Copeland Hub has consolidated 
its role and multi-agency approach 
and we will work to assist in 
developing and growing the 
capability of the Hub to deliver 
increased joint activity and services.

Q4 Q4 Annual Report Information reported to Copeland Annual achievements and reported within the service 
plan

P
age 36



Appendix A

11

Strengthening the way we operate
Key Deliverable 24 
Cyber Security Overall Progress of Key Deliverable         

Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Q1
Q1- Disaster recovery Plan in place for ICT. Industry standard robust back-up solution is now in place.  Data backed-up and 

recoverable from at 3 sites (Copeland Centre, Moresby and London)

Q1
Q1- Robust backup in place Industry standard network security model has now been implemented, this limits he of a 

virus to cause damage across the estate.

Q1 Q1- PSN remediation work completed and accreditation. PSN remediation works largely complete.  PSN accreditation awarded in Q1 meaning 
CBC have met the criteria and have been re-connection to government departments.

Q1 Q1- Reconvening of ICT Strategy working group ICT Strategy working group reconvened and had initial meetings.

Q1 Q1- weekly patch tests to windows based systems 
established

All windows based applications and support systems are  patched weekly with security 
and critical updates (Patch Tuesday)

Q1 Q1-Monitoring systems on place for network Improved monitoring systems are now in place which will alert ICT staff to any unusual 
system behaviour.

Q1 Q1-Weekly Communications to all staff Weekly communications e-mails established to inform all staff of cyber security activity 
and updates and necessary good practice and procedures.

Q2
Q2 Draft ICT Strategy First draft of strategy reviewed by CLT and main principles agreed.  Further stakeholder 

feedback is being sought with the next draft of strategy to be reviewed by CLT by the 
end of the calendar year.

Q2 Q2-Plan in place for systems update, upgrade or 
alternative solutions plan in place

Assessment carried out and plan in place to determine whether all of our business 
application and systems need an upgrade, update or alternative solution.

Q3
Q3 - update on delivery against improvement plan New permanent ICT Manager appointed. Work has commenced on defining priorities 

improvement plan

To maintain attention on Cyber 
Security during 2018/19 completing 
the programme of change required 
to reduce our risk and ensure our 
new network is embedded. To 
review all business applications and 
support systems and determine 
whether an update, upgrade or 
alternative system solution is 
required.

Q4

Q4 ICT Strategy Agreed V.0.2 of draft strategy has been reviewed by the Corporate Director, the next stage 
being progression from draft to strategy approval and socialisation.
Priority for Q1 and Q2 of 2019/20 is PSN health check, and implementation of the action 
plan in order to achieve compliance.

P
age 37



Appendix A

12

Key Deliverable 25 
Uniform Document Management System from IDOX Overall Progress of Key Deliverable         

Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Q1 Q1- IDOX project initiated and delivery plan agreed Project begun, some slippage due to staffing issue at IDOX.  Project delivery plan 
drafted and agreed by CLT in Q1

Q2 Q2 - IDOX hosted system built and training begun. System built and training of key staff is underway.

Q3

Q3 - Training delivered and data migration underway. Training delivery – some additional needs identified.  Plan in place to meet these in 
February. 
 
Data Migration – underway.

To improve processed and delivery 
of planning, building control and land 
charges functions

Q4 Q4Implementation of 'Uniform' doc mgmt. system from 
IDOX.

 There have been a number of technical issues with the implementation of the system. 
Configuration and testing are ongoing.

Key Deliverable 26 
Website Refit Overall Progress of Key Deliverable         

Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Q1 Q1-Initial restart of website project Interim Technical Project Manager appointed and website project restarted. 

Q2
Q2- Website project plan to be finalised Head of Governance and Commercial assigned project lead for website refit.

2 phase approach to website refit and digitisation of services agreed CLT in Q2. Initial 
work commenced on revised PID and outline business case. 

Q3

Q3 Revised draft PID and outline business case 
completed for 2 phase approach to website refit and 
digitisation of services.

Ph1 for improvement to home and landing pages, responsiveness and taxonomy 
completed within PID and Tender specification
Q3 - As at Jan, tender awarded and project timescale submitted. Redesign of home 
page in progress.  Completion schedules by March 2019

To deliver a new fit for purpose 
website able to meet our customer 
strategy requirements of fully 
accessible groups of services 
available by a district council.

Q4
Q4 -Phase 1 of website refit completed - redesign, 
content review and increased to functionality of our 
current webpage.

CBC website now moved to new cloud based web post.
The website re-skin is expected to be completed by the end of Q2 2019-20

P
age 38



Appendix A

13

Key Deliverable 27- GIS uplift to hosted site Overall Progress of Key Deliverable         
Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Q1 Q1- Enterprise License agreement and SLA in place for 
ARC online GIS system

 The GIS is central tin much of the 
Councils intelligence and operation 
and the processes of upgrading will 
be completed in 2018/19 Q3 Q3- Priority layers of GIS system pushed up to ARC GIS 

online system and available to staff.
ARC GIS is installed, online and available to all staff.

Key Deliverable 28- Modgov upgrade Overall Progress of Key Deliverable         
Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Q1 Q1 Scoping for Modgov project Project Brief agreed

Q2 Q2 Advanced Modgov training for Electoral and 
Democratic Services staff

Training undertaken by Dem Services Staff in July 2018

Q3
Q3Train the trainer training for staff to be able to cascade 
learning in-house

In-house training provided to CLT
2 sessions planned for Feb 19 as part of the Core training Directory for all other 
Managers or report writer to attend.

The Modgov system will be fully 
embedded in the Council in 2018/19.

Q4
Q4 In-house staff and member training provided on 
Modgov ongoing review of usage and uptake

Modgov training held in Feb for Managers and staff. 
Full roll out anticipated after CLT have attended training.  This has not happened to date 
due to diary and prioritised work commitments of the Corporate Leadership team.

Key Deliverable 29  -Data protection Overall Progress of Key Deliverable         
Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Q1
Q1 Refreshed data protection policy and GDPR preparations 
completed. Training offered to elected members.

Refreshed Data Protection Policy approved in Q1.GDPR preparations made for May18 
launch.  Information Asset Register now in place.  GDPR training provided for members 
42/50 members trained to date and a further training session is planned for August. 

Q2

Q2 Mandatory Data Protection and GDPR compliance 
training to all staff

Mandatory training offered to all staff and Members and apprentices.  80% take-up rate 
for staff, 70% for members and 100% for apprentices.
  Further training courses to accommodate those who did not attend the first time and 
subsequent new starters will be run again.

Q3 Q3 updated Document retention and disposal policy agreed. The Document Retention and Disposal policy was updated in May 2017 for GDPR. A 
follow-up review, 1 year later, will be carried out in Q4.

To manage the challenges of 
national policy developments and 
global issues including data 
protection, information management 
and cyber security.

Q4
Q4 Refreshed Information Management Strategy Review of Information Management Strategy has been paused due to internal transfer of 

staff.  Strategy to be reviewed and revised accordingly after Q2 2019-20 when new 
Information Management Officer takes up post.

P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B

1

Key Performance Indicator Q1 
Value

Q2 
Value

Q3 Value Q4 Value 2018/19 End 
of Year Value

2018/19 
Annual Target

2018/19 
Value vs 
Target

Was the 
annual 
target 
met?

How do 2018/19 end of year 
figures compare to 2017/18 
end of year figures?

Notes and Analysis

KPI 1.1
  
Percentage of Council Tax collected 29.01% 56.14% 83.98% 97.05% 97.05%

Annual total 95.00% 2.05% 97.05%  collected in 2018/19 
compared to

94.49%

KPI 1.2  

Number empty homes <6months 
brought back into use

18 0 33 75 75
Annual total 35 40 75 in 2018/19 compared to 36 

in 2017/18

KPI 1.3 
 
Number of new homes approved

67 117 52 207 443 300 143
Fewer homes approved in 

2018/19 compared to 207/18, 
however the end of year figure 

has exceeded the annual 
target.

537 new homes approved in 2016/17
477 new homes approved in 2017/18 
443 new homes approved in 2018/19

The number of homes approved remains well above the target set.

KPI 1.4
  
Number of new homes built

24 18 26 22 90 300 -210 90 in 2018/19 compared to 98 
in 2017/18

118 new homes built in 2016/17
98 new homes built in 2017/18 
90 new homes built in 2018/19

There were actually 120 additional homes built during 2018-19.  This is fairly 
consistent with completions since the Core Strategy was adopted.  Planning 
permission has been granted for more homes than this each year and officers 
have been working hard to attract new developers into the borough and build 
on these sites.  These new developers are getting close to acquiring sites and 
increased development is expected over the next year or so as these new 
house builders start to build in the borough.

KPI 1.5
 
Number of new AFFORDABLE homes built

0 0 0 0 0 45 -45 Compares to 17 affordable 
homes built in 2017/18

Whilst there were no affordable homes built during 2018-19 54 have been 
approved and we expect to see those built over the next couple of years.

KPI 1.6
  
Number of new EXECUTIVE homes built

10 7 8 20 45 45 0 Compares to 43 built in 
2017/18

The number of 4-bed+ homes that were built during the year met the target.

KPI 1.7 

External funding for Economic 
Development Secured £0.00 £0.00 £265000.00 £2199828.00 £2863828.00 £500000.00 £2363828.00

The total secured for Copeland 
in 2018/19 exceeds our target 

of £500000.00 by £2363282.00

Q3
Tranche 2 Well Whitehaven        £200k
Coastal development fund          £  15k
Digital development fund           £  25k
Sports Strategy                         £  25k
                                               £265k

Key Performance Indicators report for Quarter 4 of 2018/19

PI Status

Not met target set for the year

Within target tolerances set by Service Manager

On or exceeded target set for the year

Unknown, not available or not able to compare

Data Only

Long Term Trends

End of year performance for 2018/19 is better than 2017/18

End of year performance for 2018/19 is same as 2017/18

End of year performance for 2018/19 is worse than 2017/18

P
age 41



Appendix B

2

Key Performance Indicator Q1 
Value

Q2 
Value

Q3 Value Q4 Value 2018/19 End 
of Year Value

2018/19 
Annual Target

2018/19 
Value vs 
Target

Was the 
annual 
target 
met?

How do 2018/19 end of year 
figures compare to 2017/18 
end of year figures?

Notes and Analysis

Q4
Work & Skills                             £234k
CPoP Public realm                       £350k
CPoP Keeping Copeland clean      £150k
Cumbria’s Hidden Coast             £605,828
Tourism Development                £399k
Enterprise Development             £510k
Beacon Virtual Museum              £350k
                                                £2,598,828

TOTAL                                       £2,863,828

KPI 2.1
 
Additional income generated through 
Commercial activity

Target is annual

110,938.00
Increase in 

net income in 
2018/19

£139000.00
Target for 
2018/19

Target vs 
Actual

- £28,062.00
Although below target, the 

increase in income generated 
through these services has 

increased by £67,834.00 since 
end of 2017/18

A CLT restructure in Q1 of 2019/20 includes the post ‘Head of Operational and 
Commercial Services’.  A priority for the new portfolio holder will be to 
undertake due diligence regarding future investment opportunities to grow our 
revenue income.

KPI 3.1  
Percentage of Non-domestic Rates 
Collected

76.65% 86.27% 94.48% 99.35% 99.35% 98.70% 0.65% 99.35% of NNDR was collected 
in 2018/19 compared to 98.68 

% in 2017/18

KPI 3.2 
Number of apprenticeships within the 
Council each year

8 Apprentices 6 2
The number of apprentices has 

remained at 8.  This is an 
increase of 2 on the annual 

target.

The first cohort of apprentices in 2017/18 comprised 6 apprentices.
Of which, 1 has since left the Council, 2 have secured permanent positions 
within the Council and the remaining 3 have had their apprenticeships 
extended by 1 year.
The second cohort in Sept 2018 comprised 4 external and one internal 
apprentices.
At the end of Q4 there are currently 8 apprentices

KPI 3.5 a_
Speed of processing - New Housing 
Benefits claims

31.04 24.79 12.5 10.25

20.42
Average number 
of days 22 -1.58 20.42 average number of days 

to process claim in 2018/19 
compared to 37.3 days 2017/18

KPI 3.5 b_ 
Speed of processing - New Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme claims

37.72 35.18 20.81 17.99
27.39
Average number 
of days

22 5.39
Average number of days to 
process in 2018/19 was 27 

days compared to 37 days in 
2017/18

The annual average for 2018/19 is 27.39 days, however performance 
improvement and quarterly figure show that the actual number of days to 
process new CTRS claims has been on target for the last two quarters of 
2018/19 (since October 2018) 

KPI 3.6 a_ 
Speed of processing - changes of 
circumstances for Housing Benefits 
claims

17.02 26.48 11.98 2.02
7.84
Average number 
of days

10 -2.16
Average number of days to 

process in 2018/19 was 7.84 
days compared to 37 22.61 

days in 2017/18

KPI 3.6 b_ 
Speed of processing - changes of 
circumstances for Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme claims

18.32 25.1 11.36 4.22
10.52
Average number 
of days

10 0.52
Average number of days to 

process in 2018/19 was 10.52 
days compared to 37 22.61 

days in 2017/18

KPI 3.8 
Homeless relief cases 92.5% 93% 92% 90% 91.9% 90% 1.9%

A new way of measuring 
homelessness prevention 

means that we cannot draw a 
comparison with last year. 

Targets set as part of the Homelessness Reduction Bill, which came into effect 
in 2018/19.  CBC performance has exceeded the statutory target of 90%

P
age 42



Appendix B

3

Key Performance Indicator Q1 
Value

Q2 
Value

Q3 Value Q4 Value 2018/19 End 
of Year Value

2018/19 
Annual Target

2018/19 
Value vs 
Target

Was the 
annual 
target 
met?

How do 2018/19 end of year 
figures compare to 2017/18 
end of year figures?

Notes and Analysis

KPI 3.9 Domestic Abuse Project 100% 95% 100:% 100:% 99:% 95:% 4:% Baseline data collected in 
2018/19

CBC performance exceeded target of 95%

KPI 4.1 Percentage of complaints 
resolved at stage one 96% 98% 93% 98% 96.25%

Annual average 90% 6.25% 96.25% in 2018/19 compared 
to 83% in 2017/18.

CBC performance exceeds target of 90%

KPI 4.2 Percentage of Freedom of 
information requests resolved within 
timescale

84.00% 87.40% 84.00% 96.30% 87.92% 90.00% -2.08% 87.92% in 2018/19 compared 
to 86.75% in 2017/18.

The annual average percentage of FOI requests resolved within the 20 day 
timescale is 87.92%, however performance in Q4 of 96.3% exceeded the 
statutory target of 90%.

KPI 4.3 a_ Percentage of household 
waste sent for reuse, recycling and 
composting

42.76% 42.92% 39.16% 36.60% 36.60% 40.00% -3.40% 36.60% in 2018/19 compared 
to 32.96% in 2017/18.

An increase of 3.64% on last year due to the new kerbside collection service 
increase of recycled material which has been diverted from the residual 
household waste stream. Thus reducing household waste tonnage.

KPI 4.3 b_ Percentage reduction in 
residual household waste 6.31% 6.97% 5.82% 6.04% 6.28% 6% 0.28% Baseline data collected in 

2018/19

Annual percentage reduction in residual waste per household has exceeded the 
target of 6%, this is due to the new kerbside recycling scheme reducing the 
residual waste tonnage

KPI 4.4a Percentage of NDR collected 
using DDeb payment method 62% 34.66% 34.21% 33.56% 33.56% 60% -26.44% Baseline data collected in 

2018/19

Note: KPI 4.4a and b were recorded as one combined KPI in Q1 (62%). 
From Q2 onwards the collection rates for NNDR (KPI 4.4a) and Council Tax 
(4.4b) have been recorded separately.

NNDR has a low take-up rate as many businesses choose to pay annual 
business rates bill by other methods such as BACS.

KPI 4.4b Percentage CTAX collected 
using DDeb payment method 62% 61.96% 61.9% 61.7% 61.7% 60% -3.3% Baseline data collected in 

2018/19

KPI 5.1 Percentage of 'major' planning 
applications determined within 13 weeks 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 65% 35%

Maintained 100% of major 
planning applications 

determined within timescale.

KPI 5.2 Percentage of planning 'minor' 
planning applications determined within 
8 weeks 97.77% 97.30% 98.00% 98.00% 97.77% 80.00% 17.77% 97% in 2018/19 compared to 

96% in 2017/18

KPI 5.3 Percentage of 'other' applications 
determined within 8 weeks 94.59% 98.21% 100.00% 97.73% 97.63% 80.00% 17.63% 97% in 2018/19 compared to 

95% in 2017/18

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank



EXEC 22/07/2019

Bi-Annual Health and Safety Report

LEAD MEMBER: Councilor David Moore Portfolio Holder Nuclear and Corporate 
Services

LEAD OFFICER: Julie Betteridge Executive Director
REPORT AUTHOR: Claire Dunn Human Resources Manager and Katie Longworth 

Occupational Health and Safety Advisor

WHAT BENEFITS WILL THESE PROPOSALS BRING TO COPELAND RESIDENTS?

All Council activities have the potential to impact on Copeland Residents therefore, it is 
important that activities are managed so they are carried out in a safe manner.  

WHY HAS THIS REPORT COME TO THE EXECUTIVE?

The Executive have asked to be kept informed of the management of health and safety 
of its operation for staff, members, residents, contractors and partners. This is the end 
of year report for 2018/19.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

The executive consider and note the Bi-Annual report on Health and Safety.

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 As an employer, Copeland Borough Council (CBC) is required to comply with the 
Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 and regulations made under that Act. The 
Council must have arrangements in place to protect employees and those 
affected by any work undertaking provided by the Council.

1.2 As a public sector service provider the Council is subject to a wide range of 
legislation and regulations to ensure safe delivery of our services and operational 
arrangements.

1.3 The Health and Safety Bi-Annual Report provides information on the 
arrangements for managing, planning, measuring performance and auditing and 
reviewing the arrangements for identified risks within the Authority.

Page 45

Agenda Item 8



2. HEALTH AND SAFETY BI-ANNUAL REPORT covers:

2.1 Health and Safety Strategy – measurements of success

 The Council is looking to frame its actions to manage health safety for the many 
areas of works undertaken by Copeland Borough Council as part of a robust 
management system using the ISO45001 as the new standard framework.

 A current gap analysis and action plans have been undertaken and prepared to 
enable the Council to obtain ISO standard 45001 and will be further analysed to 
ensure a correct plan for implementation is created. ISO 45001 is a recognised 
international standard. It ensures that employees know that CBC takes employee 
Health and Safety as a matter of high importance. It also ensures that 
documentation is current and changes to it are noted by inclusion of revision 
information and issue date.

2.2 Health and Safety Management - including policy and procedures

 The Fire and Lone Working Policy has been developed and implemented within 
the Authority in March 2019.

 A review of our current arrangements for ensuring that contractors and sub-
contractors are following CBC requirements has been completed with a system 
proposal to strengthen these arrangements.  

 GDPR visitor books for all sites have been sourced and have been disseminated 
to those sites along with instruction and training on their use and disposal to 
keep in line with GDPR regulations through Communication department.

2.3 Communication and Consultation

 The internal staff Health and Safety Committee has been in operation for the 
past 8 months and is the corporate avenue for reporting, discussing and 
disseminating information throughout CBC with Union and employee 
representatives. This will continue to evolve over time to ensure that the 
Committee endeavors to assist in the culture changes throughout the 
organization. An additional communication timetable will be created to ensure 
monthly stats, information on HSE legislation changes, departmental specific risk 
assessments and feedback are communicated to individuals and service teams.  

Page 46



 Monthly first aider and fire warden meetings are planned to ensure correct 
procedures are being conducted and also as an avenue for first aiders and 
marshals to ask advice and provide updates on their covered areas.

 We have a continuous auditing of local risk management processes, these are 
conducted during Health and Safety support visits at service level. This supports 
compliance with working safely and includes site inspections, routine walk 
rounds throughout the Council with any employees/members working inside or 
outside of Council premises.

 The first stages of the Risk Assessment Register and associated forms have been 
completed and updated in line with renewal dates. Staff Committee members 
have been trained and are able to complete risk assessment, inspections and 
investigations. This training will be offered to Managers and Supervisors in 
addition to the current IOSH certificate requirement.  A risk register feedback 
timetable has been created to communicate departmental risk owners. The 
format for this is a department per month in conjunction with Managers and 
Supervisors normal monthly department meetings. The entire month is then 
dedicated to that department to ensure queries and process changes are 
actioned. 

2.4 Training and Information

 The Council’s centralised core curriculum includes health and safety core and 
bespoke training. This is made available through HR to all employees for 
enrolment. Within the first half of the calendar year employees have been 
trained developing their H&S skills in areas of manual handling, fire warden, 
sharps, conflict training, first aid etc.  Future training has been planned for 
manual handling, IOSH and safeguarding.

2.5 Measuring, reviewing and auditing performance

 Corporate Safety and investigation work is an-going process of management of 
Health and Safety. Investigations are carried out in accordance with HSE 
guidelines; investigation training for staff committee members has been 
delivered and enabled staff members to conduct investigations as requested to 
report to Health and Safety Advisor and the staff Health and Safety Committee 
for audit and review. 

 The Council introduced a new recording arrangement for near misses for all 
staff.  Recorded in table 1 are Near miss, Accidents and RIDDOR per department 
as reported for Q1 April – June 2019:

Page 47



Table 1:
Department Near Miss Accident RIDDOR

Parks & Open Spaces 22 3 0
Waste & Enforcement 4 7 3
Environmental 
Health/Protection

0 1 0

The Beacon 1 0 0
ICT 2 0 0

3. CONCLUSIONS

3.1 The previous six months of health and safety management can be summarised:

 We currently comply, and continue to comply with the Health and Safety at 
Work Act 1974 and the many associated Regulations.

 We have continued to develop areas of improvement in the current Health and 
Safety Management system and highlighted priority topics to be addressed e.g. 
near misses and updating risk assessments. 

 Work has begun to develop our preparations and systems to ensure ISO 45001 
framework is made standard within the current system. 

 Policies and Procedures have continued to be updated to reflect any 
management system and legislative changes.

 We have set up and will continue to embed the role of the staff Health and 
Safety Committee and our Health and Safety Champions (First Aiders, Mental 
First Aiders and Fire Wardens) to deliver our health and safety commitments and 
priorities.

5.    STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS 

5.1 Legal comments are: Any legal issues arising are addressed within the report.

5.2 The Monitoring Officer’s comments are: This report is for considering and noting; 
there are no direct legal implications arising from this report, and, reference to 
relevant regulation is contained therein. 

5.3 The Section 151 Officer’s comments are: There are no financial implications 
arising from this recommendation.

5.4 EIA Comments: Health and Safety fully supports EIA principles. One of the main 
aims of Health and Safety is to provide a safe working environment for all staff, 
and to ensure that others are not put at risk by our activities. The Health and 

Page 48



Safety Advisor role plays an essential role in identifying workplace and other 
adaptations that may be needed to support people to start, remain or return to 
work.  Health and Safety activity is guided by the Council’s Equality Scheme and 
the equality impact assessment requirements.

5.5 Policy Framework: The Council operates within health and safety legislation as 
an employer and public service provider.

5.6 Other consultee comments, if any: Staff health and safety committee runs the 
second Wednesday of every month and has operational and administrative staff, 
supervisors, managers and Unison representatives, weekly stat reporting to CLT 
and any immediate updates that need CLT decisions based on the level of issue. 
Monthly department risk register meetings now on a rolling schedule with a 
month dedicated to each individual department.

6. RESOURCE REQUIREMENTS

6.1 The Council has a full time Health and Safety Advisor within the Human 
Resources service team who works across all the Council’s sites and operations.   
Staff on the health and Safety committee are released by their services to ensure 
active engagement across the organization. Training is a key resource for all staff 
to ensure they are clear of their role and responsibilities in relation to health and 
safety requirements of staff and services.  

7.      HOW WILL THE PROPOSALS BE PROJECT MANAGED AND HOW ARE THE RISKS 
MANAGED?              

7.1 The Council manages operational risks through individual service delivery and 
management.  There is a corporate health and safety risk register which is 
overseen by CLT.  Actions and projects to mitigate risks will follow the Council’s 
performance and project frameworks.

8.      WHAT MEASURABLE OUTCOMES OR OUTPUTS WILL ARISE FROM THIS REPORT?

8.1 The Council has started its journey towards achieving ISO 45001. This 
measurable scope will be:

 Completed OH&S policy that reinforces the objectives of the organisation 
while taking into account its internal and external contexts

 Establishment, implementation, and maintenance of an OH&S management 
system

 Continual improvement of OH&S performance
 Assured conformity to the OH&S policy
 Demonstration of compliance with this ISO Standard

Page 49



List of Appendices 

Not Applicable

List of Background Documents:

Copeland Health and Safety Strategy 2015 – 2020, Health and Safety Executive – 
Successful Health and Safety Management (HSG 65), ISO 45001, internal staff health and 
safety committee papers, performance data, CLT reports, risk assessments and risk 
register.

Page 50


	Agenda
	2 Statements of Executive Decisions of the Meeting held on 24 June 2019
	6 Forward Plan
	7 2018/19 Council Performance Plan - Quarter 4
	Appendix A -Corporate Strategy Delivery Plan Report for Q4 of 2018-19
	Appendix B - Key Performance Indicator Report for Q4 of 2018-19

	8 Health and Safety Half Yearly Monitoring Report

